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Exam Analysis 

Question 

no. 

Sub 

Part Sep-24 Jan-25 May-25 Sep-25 

1 

Compulsory 

  

a AS 26 /Marks 4 AS 20/5 AS 10/7 AS 22/5 

b AS15/5 AS 19/5 AS 13/7 AS 2/5 

c AS 22/5 AS 15/4   AS 9/4 

2   Final Account/14 Internal Recons./14 Final Account /14 Final Account/14 

3 

  

a AS 3/7 AS 29/7 AS 3/7 AS 3/7 

b Buy back/7 AS 3/7 AS 25/7 AS 28/7 

4   AS 14/14 AS 14/14 AS 14/14 AS 14/14 

5 

  

  AS 21/14 AS 21/14 AS 21/10 AS 21/14 

      AS 21/4   

6 

Choice 4 

marks 

  

  

a AS 13/4 AS 18/4 Intro./4 AS 5/4 

b AS 2/4 Framework/4 AS 28/4 Framework/4 

c Internal Recons./4 Buy back/4 Final Accounts/4 IR/4 

d Branch/6 Branch/6 Branch/6 Branch /6 

MCQ 
 

Case 1 

  

  

   

1 AS 2/2 AS 10/2 AS 7/2 Buy back/2 

2 AS 10/2 AS 10/2 AS 7/2 Buy back/2 

3 AS 16/2 AS 28/2 AS 7/2 Buy back/2 

4 AS 13/2 AS 10/2 AS 10/2 Buy back/2 

5     AS 26/2 Final Accounts /2 

Case 2 

  

  

  

  

  

1 AS 9/2 AS 22/2 AS 9/2 AS 17/2 

2 AS 29/2 AS 22/2 AS 13/2 AS 17/2 

3 AS 4/2 AS 22/2 AS 11/2 AS 17/2 

4 AS 18/2 AS 22/2 AS 24/2   

5 AS 19/2 AS 7/2 AS 19/2   

6 AS 20/2 AS 16/2     

Case 3 

  

  

  

  

  

1 AS 3/2 AS 3/2 Buy Back/2 AS 26/2 

2 AS 3/2 AS 3/2 Buy Back/2 As 16/2 

3 AS 3/2 AS 3/2 Buy Back/2 AS 12/2 

4 Internal Recons./2 AS 3/2 Final Accounts/2 AS 12/2 

5 Final Accounts/2 Final Accounts/2 Internal Recons./2 AS 15/2 

6       AS 10/2 
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Topic wise Scanner 

Topic Name Sep-24 Jan-25 May-25 Sep-25 

Introduction     4   
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AS 2 4+2     5 
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AS 4 2       

AS 5       4 

AS 7   2 2+2+2   
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AS 11     2   
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AS 17       2+2+2+2 

AS 18 2 4     

AS 19 2 5 2   
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AS 21 14 14 14 14 

AS 22 5 2+2+2+2   5 

AS 23         

AS 24     2   

AS 25     7   

AS 26 4   2 2 

AS 27         

AS 28   2 4 7 

AS 29 2 7     

Final Accounts 14+2 2 14+4+2 14+2 

Internal Reconstruction 4+2 14 2 4 

Branch 6 6 6 6 

Buy Back 7 4 2+2+2 2+2+2+2 
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Intermehate P-1 Sept- 2024

he question paper comprises two parts, Part I and Part II.
Part I comprises Multiple Choice Questions (MCQs).
Part II comprises questions which require descriptive type answers.

4089257

Ensure that you receive thequestion paper relating to both the parts. Ifyou have notreceived both, bring it to thenotice ofthe invigilator.
Answers to Questions of Part I are tobe marked on the OMR answer sheet given on the cover page of descriptive
answer book only. Answers to questions in Part II are tobe written on the descriptive type answer book. Answersto MCQs, if written inside the descriptive type answer book or on Part-I Question Paper, will not be evaluated.OMR answer sheet given on the cover page ofdescriptive answer book will be in English only for all candidates,including for Hindi mediumcandidates.
The bar coded sticker provided in the attendance register, is to be affixed only on the descriptive type answerbook.

You will be allowed to leave theexamination hallonly after the conclusion ofthe exam. Ifyouhavecompleted thepaper before time,remain in your seat tillthe conclusion of the exam.
Duration ofthe examination is 3 hours. You will be required to submit the descriptive answer book withOMR
cover page to the invigilator before leaving the exam hall, after the conclusion ofthe exam.
The invigilator willgive youacknowledgement on Page 2ofthe admit card, uponreceipt ofthe above-mentioned items.
Candidate found copying or receiving or giving any help or defying instructions oftheinvigilators or having/usingmobile phone orsmart watch will be expelled from the examination and will also be liable for further punitive action.

Answer all questions.

Use HB pencil only to darken the circles for answers in the answer sheet.
After each question four alternative answers areare given. Choose one of the answerscircle against the question number in theOMRAnswer Sheet, completely, as shown

approp
pencil.

Marking

Any answer marked in the question booklet or inside the descriptive answer book will not be considered and nomarks will beawarded.

If a candidate wants tochange the answer already darkened, he should erase it completely, with good qualityeraser and ensure that no mark is visible after erasing.
No mark will be awarded ifno circle is darkened or more than one circle is darkened for a particular question.There is no negative marking for a wrong answer.
Rough work, if any,must bedone on the pages, specified asSPACE FORROUGH WORK only and nowhere elsein the question paper booklet or in the answer sheet.
Before commencement ofthe exam, please fill up the necessary information in the space provided below and alsoin the answer sheet.
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RPJ1
15. "Fixed Asset held for sale" will be classified in the Balance Sheet as perSchedule III of the Companies Act as:

2
(A) Deferred Tax Assets

(B) Current Asset

(C) Non-Current Asset

6(D) Long term Investments
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IN-1/JAN-2025

-

2

Question Paper Booklet No. 2132385
THONSTE ANDEDVËT'S

GENLRAL ENSIR!T
The question paper comprises two parts, Part I and Part .

1.

Part I comprises Multiple Choice Questions (MCQs).3. Part Il comprises questions which require descriptive answers.4. Ensure that you receive the question paper relating to both the parts. Ifyou have not received hoth, bring itto the

notice ofthe invigilator.
5. Answers to Questions ofPart I are to be marked on the OMR answer sheetgiven on the cover page of descriptive

answer book only. Answers to questions in Part Il are to be written inside the descriptive answer book.

Answers to MCQS, if written imside the descriptive answer book or on Part-I Questions Paper, will notbe evaluated.

OMR answer sheet given on the cover page of descriptive answer book willbe in English only for ail candidates,

including for Hindi medium candidates.

6

7. The bar coded sticker provided in the attendance register, is to be affixed only on the deseriptive answer book.

8. You wiltbe allowed to leave the examination hall only after the conclusion ofthe exam. Ifyouhave completed the

paper before time, remain in your seat till the conclusion ofthe exam.
9 Duration of the examination is 3 hours. You will be required to submit the descriptive answer book with OMR

cover page to the invigilator before leaving the exam hall,after the conclusion of the exam.

10. The invigilator will give you acknowledgement onon Page 2 of the admit card, upon receipt of the descriptive answer

book.
11. Candidate found copying or receiving or giving any help or defying instructions of the invigilators orhaving/using

mobile phone or smart waich will beexpelled fromthe examination and willalso be liable for further punirive action.1. Answer all questions.2.

3.

PARE
30 marksUse HB pencil only to darken the circles for MCQ answers in the answer sheet.

After each question four alternative answers are given. Choose one ofthe answers and darken the appropriate

circle against the question number inthe OMR Answer Sheet, completely, as shown below, with HB pencil.Marking the. Answers
Example:

For Question No. 12, if the candidateconsiders the correct answer to be
C, he is to mark as shown below(Correct Method)

Not as shown beloW
(Wrong methed):
12 A

12 D

12A P12 D
12 A 宜 ☑

12 D4
Any answer marked in the question bookiet or inside the descriptive answer book will not be considered and no

marks willbe awarded.5.

6.

If a candidate wants to change the answer already darkened, tie should erase it completely, with good quality
eraser and ensure that no mark is visible after erasing.
There is no negative marking for a wrong answer.

No mark will be awarded if no circle is darkened or more than one circie is darkened for a particular question.
7.

Rough work, ifany, mustbe done on the pages, specified as SPACE FOR ROUGH WORK only and nowhere else
in the question paper booklet or in the answer sheet.8. Before commencement ofthe exam, please fill up the necessary information in the spaceprovided below and also

in the answer sheet.
Total No. of Printed Pages: 12

Roll No.

Maximum Marks: 30

Question Paper
Booklet Code FHP 1Name of the Candidate

Signature of the Candidate

67 Π
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PART~I

Case Scenario-I:
0C

M
On 1st April, 2019, Black Limited received a goverminent grant of 15,00,000 foracquisition of a Machine costing 50,00,000. The grnt was credited to the cost of
the Machine. The life of the Machine is expected to be. 10 years and estimatedresidual value at the end of 10 years is5,00,000. The company charges

S
depreciation on straight line basis.

00
3

Due to non-fulfillment of certain conditions the conpany had to refund the entiregrant on 1st April, 2021.
2

On 31s" March, 2023, Black Limited received certain indications of impairment ofthe Machine and the recoverable amount was ascertained to be 28,00,000 withrevised useful life of 4 years and nil residual value.

On 1t April, 2024, the company exchanged the Machine by paying cash_of2,00,000 and new Machine valued at18,00,000.3
00

2

N

Based on the information given in above Case Scehario, answer the followingQuestion No. 1-4:

1. What will be the carrying amount of the Machine as on 31 March, 2021 after
charging depreciation for the year?

(A) 28,00,000

(B) 26,00,000

(C) 41,00,000

(D) 29,00,000

FHP1

1
1
3
2
23
8
4
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4.

(4)

FHP1

2. What will be the amount of depreciation to be charged on the Machine for the
year ended 31t March, 2022?

(A) 4,87,5

(B) 6,37,50
1-

(C) 4,50,000

(D)5,37,500

C1

3. What will be the impact oftest of impairment on Profit & Loss Account ofthe4
company? 2

2

(A) Impairment loss of 4,00,000 to be debited to Profit & Loss A/c.
(B) Impairment loss of 4,25,000 to be debited to Profit & Loss A/c.
(C) Impairment loss of 6,25,000 to be debited to Profit & Loss A/c.
(D) Impairment loss of 15,25,000 to be debited to Profit & Loss A/c.

عد

62
What will bethe amount of Profit or Loss on exchange of Machine as on1 April, 2024?

(A) Loss of 8,00,000

L

(B) Loss of 2,00,000

3

(C) Profit of1,00,000

(D) Loss of 3,00,000

FHP1

2

2
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Case Scenario-II:

The following particulars are statad in the Balance Sheet of Star Limited as on

31t" March, 2023:

Deferred Tax Assets (Dr.)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Cr.)

ク
イ

1,20,000

2,10,000

The following transactions were reported during the year 2023-24:

1. Depreciation as per accounting records 12,00,000

2. Depreciation as per income tax records 18,00,000

3. Interest paid accounted in books on acerual basis but paid on

X
15-05-2024 M 4,50,000

N

4. Employer PF Contribution exp. disallowed for tax purpose in

year 2022-23 but allowed in year 2023-24 82,000

5. Unamortized preliminary expenses as per tax records 1,00,000

6. Donation 70,000

M

7. Tax Rate 20%

FHP1
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Based on the information given in above Case Scenario, answer the foliowingQuestion No.5-8:

5. What would be the value of the Deferrое
C

Tax Assets as on 31-03-20247 2

(A) 1,52,000

2

(B) 3,30,000

(C) 1,23,600

(D) 4,50,000 4

N

6. What would be the value of the Deferred Tax Liabilities as on 31-03-2024? 2

(A) 1,23,600

(B)3,30,000

(C) 1,52,000 ש

さ
(D) 1,20,000

N

7. What would be the value of reversal of Defertred Tax Assets as on 31-03-2024? 2
(A) 20,000

(B)1,04,000

(C)16,400

さ

3

2

42
03
3

(D) 90,000

FHP1
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(7)

FHP18. Which is the permanent difference item as per AS 22?
2(A) Employer PF Contribution exp.

(B) Donation

(C) Unamortized preliminary expense
(D) Depreciation

$
2
3
8
5

N

9. AB Contractors undertakes a fixed price contract of 350 Lakhs. Information
related to contract is given as under: 2

3

2Material purchased

125 LakhsLabour charges
95 LakhsUnused material

22 lakhsEstimated futre costs to be incurred to complete the contract 115 Lakhs.5Payment received as part payment of coftract
50 LakhsMachinery used for 4 years for the contract. Original cost of the machine is

210 Lakhs. Expected life of machinery ls 20 years.
What will be the Profit/ Loss on the contract ?
(A) Loss on contract5 lakhs
(B) Loss on contract 49 Lakhs

(C) Profit on contract45 Lakhs
(D) Profit on contract 26.5 Lakhs

2
1
3
2
3
8
5

FHPI
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10. Ace Limited borrowed 25 Lakhs from ABN Bank during the financial year
2023-24. Ace Limited used these funds to invest in Equity shares of KayL

Limited.
M

2N

Kay Limited is implementing a new Project, so with these future prospects,
Ace Limited invested25 Lakhs in Kay Limited.

As on 31s March, 2024, since the said project was not complete, the directors
of Ace Limited capitalised the interest on loan amounting to2 lakhs and thus
added the amount of inefest to the cost of Investments.

יל

Market value of these investments on 31st March, 2024 is 24 Lakhs.

Identify the correct statement, considering the above facts as per AS 16:

(A) Interest paid is acquisition charge, hence directors of Ace Limited
correctly added the amount of interest in cost of investment.

(B) Since project is qumlifying Asset, directors of Ace Limited correctlyM

added the amount interest in cost of investments.
N

(C) Ace Limited invested in equity share which is not a qualifying asset,
therefore directors are wrong to add the interest in cost of investments,
rather it should be charged to profit and loss account.

(D) Since project is ualifying asset, directors of Ace Limited shouldM

capitalise the interest amount to market value of investments, rather thanN

cost of investments.

FHP1
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Case Scenario - III:

(9)

FHP1

The following summary cash account has been extractedLimited's accounting records:

N

N

こん

רס

from the Nextspace

Cash Balance as on 01-04-2023

72,000Inflow of Cash

Cash Sales
15,56,000Trade Receivable
7,40,000Rent from Property held as investment 64,000

2
1
3
2
3
8
A

Income tax refund

25,000Loan from Bank
5,00,000Issue of Shares
2,50,000Sale of Investment
49,500 31.84,500Outflow of Cash

Trade Payable
19,60,000Office and Selling Exp.
1,20,000Trade Commission
40,500Underwriting Commission
25,000

Redemption of Preference shares
8,00,000Brokerage on Sale of Investment 9,200

Interest on long term borrowings 85,600
Payment for Overheads

46,000
Purchases of Goodwill

50,000 (31,36,300)Balance as on 31-03-24

1,20,200

FHP1
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Question Paper Booklet No.

MAY 2275

6124265

4

5

11.

ERARINSE24 2.8ONS TO ANDIDNEN
The question paper comprises two parts, Part 1 and Part II.
Part I comprises Multiple Choice Questions (M

Part II comprises questions which require descriptive answers.
that you receive the question paper relating to both the parts. If you have not received both, bring it tothe notice of the n

Answers to Questions of Part I are to be marked on the OMR answer sheet given on the cover page of deserip
answer book only, Answers to questionsk янлоля nтт te to be written inside the descriptive answer book. Answers to

ide the descriptive answer book will not be evaluated

OMR answer sheet given on the cover page of descriptive answer book will be in English only for all
candidates, including for Hindi medium candidates.

The bar coded stcker provided in the attendance register, is to be affixed only on the descriptive answer
You will be allowed to leave the examination ball enis aner the copive anawconchusion of the exam. If you have completed
the paper before time, remain in your seat till the conclusion of the e
Duration of the examination is 3 hours. Y ou will be required to submit the descriptive answer books with OMR
cover page to the

аведо ts AnYIEilator before leaving the cxam hall, after the conclusion of the exam
The invigilator will give you acknowledgement on Page 2 of the admit card, upon receipt of the deseriptive
answer book.

Candidate found copying or receiving or giving any help or defying instructions of the invigilators
haying/using mobile phone or smart wa xpelled from the examination and will also be linble r
further pumitive action

Answer all MCOs
PARE 30 marks

Use HB peneil only to darken the cireles for MCQ answers in the answer sheet
After each MCO, four options have been given, Choose the co
the corresponding eirele

hve eesn уср Choose the correct and most appropriate option and darken
circle against the question number in the OMR. Answer Sheet, completely, as shown below

with НВ рencil.

Marking the Answers

Example :

For Question Nо 12 if tthe

candidate considers the correct

answer to bе С. he is to mark as

shown below (Correct Method

A

Not as shown below

(Wrong method) :
12 A) (B

12 A

12 A

A

D

8.

Any answer to MCQ marked inside descriptive answer book will not be considered aod no marks will
If a candidate wants to change the option already darkened, he should erase it completely, with
craser and ensure that no mark is visible atter erasing.
No mrk will be awarded if no circle is darkened or more than one circle is darkened for a particular MCо.
There is no negative marking for a wr

Rough work, if any, must be done on the pages, specified as SPACE FOR ROUGH WORK only and nowhеre
else in the question paper booklet or in the answer sheet

Before commencement of the exam, please fill up the nece
also in the answer sh

Total No. oféd Pa

Roll No.

Name of the Candidate

ase fill up the necessary information in the space provided below and

Question Paper
Booklet Code

MaxiMarks-20

Signature of the Candidate

63
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KCE1

This booklet the the Еxатinationis property of Body. Ап

unauthorized and illegal circulation of its contents in part or in full in

any тanner whatsoever is strictly prohibited. Candidates involved in

such unauthorized and illegal acts are liable to be prosecuted besides

being disqualified to appear in any further examinations of the

Examination Bod

(O) After each MCQ, four options have been given. Choose the correct

and most appropriate option and darken the corresponding circle

against the MCO number in the OMR answer sheet.

2)

(3)

Answer to MCOs, if written inside the descriptive answer book

shall not be awarded any mark

Please ensure to write and darken correct MCO booklet number in

the OMR answer sheet. The correct MСО booklet number must

also be written in the attendance register.

Please write your Roll No. and паmе on the topmost page of thе

MCO booklet at the specified place without fail

KCE1
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PART -I

Case Scenario –I:

Gray Ltd is engaged in the business of constructing towers since 15 years.s. Alpha
Ltd gave a contract to Gray I.td for construction of 2 towers.

Contract price for 2 towers is agreed at ₹ 160 crore. (each tower has contract price
of 80 crore)

At the time of contract, Gray Ltd has estimated that the contract cost will be 7 141

crore. It is assumed that construction will be completed in 3 years.

At the end of year 1, Gray Ltd has reyised the construction cost to 150 crore.

At the beginning of year 2, the customer has requested for a variation in the
contract. Customer now wants construction of 3 towers instead of 2 towers. The

term of the contract will not change, construction of all the towers will be completed
simultaneously.

As a result of this variation, contract price will increase by? 80 crore and contraet
costs will increase by ₹ 75 crore.

Gray Ltd has decided to measure the stage of completion on the basis of the

proportion of contract costs incurred to the total estimated contract costs

Contract costs incurred at the end of each year is:

Year 1:₹35.25 crоre

Year 2: 148.5 crore ( including unused material ofर 2.25 crore)

Year 3 : Total Revised contract costs

Based on the information given in above Case Scenario, answer the following
Question 1 —3:

KCE1
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What is the stage of completion of contract on the basis of proportion of

contract costs incurred to the total estimated contract costs at the end of year 1

and Year 2 respectively 7

(Ạ) Year 1:23.5 °% and Year 2 : 66%

(B) Year 1 :23.5°% and Year 2 : 65°

(C)Year 1:25°% and Year 2 : 66%

(D) Year 1 : 25 °% and Year 2: 65%

What is the amount of the profit to be recognized at the end of Year 1?

(A) 2.35 crore

(B) 44.75 erore

(C) 4.75 сrore

(D) 721crore

What is the amount of contract revenue recognized in each year of contract

(A)

(B)

Year 1: ₹ 80 crore, Year 2: ₹ 80 crore and Year 3:280 crore

Year 1:40 crore, Year 2:2116crore and Year 3 : 84 crore

(C) Year 1:37.60 crore, Year 2:₹118.40 crore and Year 3 : ₹ 84 crore

(D) Year 1 : ₹ 37.60 crore, Year 2: 2120.80 crore and Year 3: ₹ 81.60 crore

I

P- 72



X Ltd. has entered

(5)

KCE1

into a binding agreement with Beta Ltd. to buy a custom-

made machine for € 2 lakhs. During the year 2024-25 X Ltd has to change its

method of production due to changes in market trend. Before the delivery of

the machine, X Ltd had already changed its method of production and the new

method will not require the machine ordered. Now the company decides to

scrap it after delivery. The expected scrap value is 25,000. Machine was

received on 10th October, 2024 and was scrapped on 15th October, 2024. The

correct accounting treatment for above machine in the year 2024-25 is

(A) Machine A/c to be debited with ₹ 2 lakhs and Bank A/c to be credited

with 2 lakhs.

(B) Impairment A/c to be debited with 1.75 lakhs and Bank A/c to be

credited with 1,75 lakhs.

(C) Profit and Loss A/c to be debited with ₹ 2 lakhs and Bank Ale to

credited with マ 2 lakhs.

be

(D) Profit and Loss A/e to be debited with ₹ 1.75 lakhs and Bank A/c to te

credited with 175 lak

5.
ABC Ltd., is in the business of creating contents for various OTT platforms.

The company has developed a technical know-how (the asset) by ineurring

expenditure of 25 lakhs. The company started using the asset from 1ª" April

2019. The management of the company is of the view that the asset has

infinite lifetime and therefore has not amortized the asset till date.

KCE1
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(6)

KCEL

What should be the total amortization amount (including current as well as the

previous years amortization) to be charged to Profit and loss account for the

усaг сnded March 31" 2024, with reference to AS 26 7

(A) Nil, as per the management the know how has infinite life and the

management is correct.

(B) 25 lakhs as the know how is an intangible asset as per AS 26.

(C)R 12.5 lakhs (including current year’s amortization of ? 2.5 lakhs) to be

charged to Profit and loss Account.

)D(

15 lakhs (including current year's amortization of 2.5 lakhs) to be

charged to Profit and Loss account.

Case Scenario I:

Health India Limited (HIL), incorporated under the The Companies Act, 2013, is

engaged in the production and distribution of medicines. It has manufacturing plants

at Baddi (Himachal Fradesh) and Bhopal (Madhya Pradesh). It also imports

medicines from Pharma Inc. New York (United States)

On 1" Jan 2024, HIL sold 2,00,000 strips of Medicine to Dee Limited for 50

Lakhs on 60 days of credit. Cost per strip of this medicine, was 20. (i.e.) total cost

40 Lakhs (2,00,000 strips@? 20). Dee Ltd paid 202% of the amount due on 5

January, 2024. In March 2024, Dee Limited is having significant cash flow issues

KCEI
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(7)

and is trying to raise funds through bank loan to run its operations. However, it is

unable to do so and not able to release payment to HIL on due date. Subsequent to

this, it has gone under liquidation on 15th March, 2024. At the time when medicine

was sold by HIL to Dee Limited, there was no reason for HIL. to believe that it wili

not be able to collect the sales proceeds from Dee Limited in future.

On 1" April,2023 HIL has made an investment of ₹ 200 Lakhs in the equity shares

of Rose Limited of which 50% is made in the long-term category 1.e. long-term

investment and rest as temрогагу investment i.e. current investment, The realisable

value of all such investments on 319 March, 2024 becomes 50 Lakhs as Rose

Limited lost a copyright. From the given market conditions, it is apparent that th

reduction in the value of investment is not temporary in nature

HIL imported medicine from Pharma Ine. fora sum of US $ 2,50,000 on

1" January, 2024. HIL released full payment on 17h April, 2024 to Medicine Lid

The exchange rates are as follows nc

1 Aрril, 2023

1 January, 2024

31 March,04

17th April, 2024

Exchange rate per $

マ76

KCE1
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Answers Key 
 

MCQ No. Answers 

1. B 

2. C 

3. A 

4. D 

5. A 

6. C 

7. A 

8. C 

9. B 

10. B 

11. B 

12. D 

13. A 

14. C 

15. B 

 

 

 

Answer 1 
 

(a)  (i)   Journal Entry for the year ended on 31st March 2024 
 

   ` 

in lakhs 

` 

in lakhs 

31.3.24 Amortization A/c (340 × 350/ 1,190) 

To Patent Rights A/c 

Dr. 
 

 
Dr. 

100 
 

 
100 

 
 

100 
 

 
100 

P&L A/c 

To Amortization A/c 
 

 

Working note 
 

Huge Limited amortised ` 340 lakhs during next 4 years on the basis of net 

cash flows arising of the product.  The amortisation for second year will be 

worked out as under: 
 

` 340 x 350 /1,190 (140+350+280+420) = ` 100 lakhs 
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(ii) 
 

Particulars ` in lakhs ` in lakhs 

Prior period item 

Amortization A/c 

To Know-how A/c 

[Being amortization of 6 years (out of 

which amortization of 5 years charged as 

prior period item i.e. 80 x 6 /8 = 60 lakhs)] 

Dr. 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

50 

10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60 

 
 
 
 

60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 

50 

Profit and Loss A/c 

To Amortization A/c 

To Prior Period Item 

(Being amount transferred to Profit and 

Loss account) 
 

(b)  Computation of Expected and Actual Returns on Plan Assets 
 

 ` 

Return on ` 5,00,000 held for 12 months at 10.50% 

Return on ` 1,42,000 for 6 months at 10.50% 

Loss of interest on benefits paid for 4 months on ` 63,000 

for 4 months @ 10.50% 

52,500 

7,455 

(2,205) 

Expected return on plan assets for 2023-2024 57,750 

Fair value of plan assets as on 31st March 2024 

Less: Fair value of plan assets as on 1 April,2023  5,00,000 

Contributions received on 30.9.2023          1,42,000 
 

 

Add: Benefits paid on 30th Nov 2023 

Actual return on plan assets 

7,50,000 
 
 

(6,42,000) 

1,08,000 

63,000 

1,71,000 
 

 

(c)  Calculation of Deferred Tax Asset/Liability in Delta Limited 
 

Year Accounting 

Income 

Taxable 

Income 

Timing 

Difference 

Timing 

Difference 

(balance) 

Deferred 

Tax 

Deferred 

Tax 

Liability 

(balance) 

2021 

2022 

2023 

34,00,000 

50,00,000 

65,00,000 

1,49,00,000 

30,00,000 

52,00,000 

67,00,000 

1,49,00,000 

4,00,000 

(2,00,000) 

(2,00,000) 

4,00,000 

2,00,000 

NIL 

1,20,000 

(60,000) 

(60,000) 

1,20,000 

60,000 

NIL 

 

Calculation of total tax 
 

Year Deferred Tax Current tax expense Total tax 
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2021 
 
 

2022 
 
 

2023 

1,20,000 

(60,000) 

(60,000) 

9,00,000 

(30,00,000 x 30%) 

15,60,000 

(52,00,000 x 30%) 

20,10,000 

(67,00,000 x 30%) 

10,20,000 
 
 

15,00,000 
 
 

19,50,000 

Note: It is assumed that the revenue and the taxable profit is the same. 
 

 

Answer 2 
 

Shivam Limited 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024 
 

Particulars Note No. ` (in 000) 

I.    Equity and Liabilities 

1.   Shareholders' funds 

(a)     Share capital 

(b)    Reserves and Surplus 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 

 
 
 
 

300.00 

232.70 

2.   Non-Current liabilities 

(a)     Long term borrowings                                    3                   135.00 

3.   Current liabilities 
 

 (a) Trade Payables 35.00 

(b) Short-Term Provisions 30.30 

  Total 733.00 

II. Assets   

1.   Non-current assets 

(a)     Property, Plant and Equipment and 

Intangible assets 

(i)   Property, Plant and Equipment             4                   596.00 

2.   Current assets 
 

(a) Inventories  58.00 

(b) Trade receivables  65.00 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents   14.00 

  Total 733.00 
 

 

Shivam Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024 
 

 Particulars Notes ` (in ‘000) 
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I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses: 

Purchases 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses (10% 

of 510∗) 

Other expenses 

 
 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 

473.00 

1.00 

474.00 
 
 

226.00 

14.00 

51.00 
 
 

82.00 

 
 

∗  520 (Plant and machinery at cost) – 10 (Cost of plant and machinery sold) 

 

 Total Expenses 373.00 

V. Profit before Tax (III-IV) 101.00 

 Tax Expense: 

Current tax 

 
 

(30.30) 

 Profit for the period (after tax) 70.70 

Notes to accounts 
 

    ` (in 000) 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. 

Share Capital 

Equity share capital 

Authorised 

35,000 shares of ` 10 each 

Issued, subscribed & paid-up 

20,000 shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 

Add: 10,000 Bonus Shares issued during 

the year 
 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities Premium Account 

Opening Balance 

Less: Utilised for bonus issue 

Revaluation reserve (2,45,000 – 1,48,000) 

General Reserve                                 90 

Less: Utilized for bonus issue              (73) 

Add: Transfer from Profit & loss @ 10% 

Profit & loss Balance 

Opening balance 

Profit for the period 

Appropriations 

Transfer to General Reserve @ 10% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
27.00 

27.00 
 
 
 
 

17.00 

7.07 
 

 

48.00 

70.70 
 

 

(7.07) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

200.00 
 

 

100.00 

 

 
 
 
 
 

350.00 
 

 
 
 
 
 

300.00 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0.00 

97.00 
 
 
 
 

24.07 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111.63 

232.70 
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3.      Long term borrowing 
 

 10% Debentures  135.00 

4 Property, Plant and Equipment   

 Land   

 Opening balance 148.00  

 Add: Revaluation adjustment 97.00  

 Closing balance  245.00 

 Plant and Machinery   

 Opening balance 520.00  

 Less: Disposed off (10.00)  

  510.00  

 Less: Depreciation (1,16,000-8,000+51,000) (159.00)  

 Closing balance  351.00 

 Total  596.00 

5 Other Income   

 Profit on sale of machinery:   

 Sale value of machinery 3.00  

 Less: Book value of machinery (10,000-8,000) (2.00) 1.00 

6 Other expenses:   

 Factory expenses 40.00  

 Selling expenses 20.00  

 Administrative expenses 22.00 82.00 
 

The final dividend will not be recognized as a liability at the balance sheet 

data (even if it is declared after reporting date but before approval of the 

financial statements) as per Accounting Standards. Hence, it has not been 

recognized in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024. 

Such dividends will be disclosed in notes only.
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Working note: 
 

Bonus Shares Issue: 
 

•  Bonus shares are issued in a 1:2 ratio, so for every 2 equity shares, 1 bonus 

share is issued. 
 

•       Equity Share Capital = ` 2,00,000 / ` 10 = 20,000 shares. 
 

•       Bonus Shares = 20,000 / 2 = 10,000 shares × ` 10 = ` 1,00,000. 
 

Alternatively, since, the amount of interest on 10% 1,35,000 Debentures comes to 

Rs 13,500 while the Debenture Interest in the trial balance is listed as ` 14,000, the 

difference of ` 500 (`13,500 - `14,000) may be treated as an advance payment. 
 
 

Answer 3 

 

(a)                                          Cash flow statement 

for the year ended 31st March 2024 

 

 (` in lakhs) (` in lakhs) 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Cash sales 

Cash collected from credit customers Interest 

received on advance payment to suppliers 

Less: Cash purchases 

Less: Payment to Creditors (84 + 176 – 92) Less: Cash paid 

to suppliers for consumables & services 

Less: Cash paid to employee 

Cash from operations 

Less: Income tax paid 

Net    cash    generated    from    operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities Payment for 

purchase of Machine (20-15) Proceeds from rent 

received 

Net cash used in investing activities Cash flow 

from financing activities Redemption of 

Preference shares Proceeds from issue of Equity 

shares Debenture interest paid 

Dividend Paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent 

Add:     Cash  and  cash  equivalents  as  on 

1.04.2023 

Cash and cash equivalents as on 31.3.2024 

 

 

262.00 

134.00 

0.50 
 

 

(44.00) 

(168.00) 

(19.00) 

 
(20.00) 

145.50 

(26.00) 
 

 
 
 
 

(5.00) 

8.00 
 

 
 
 

(32.00) 

24.00 

(3.00) 

(15.00) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119.50 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3.00 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(26.00) 

96.50 

2.00 

98.50 
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(b)  Statement determining the maximum number of shares to be bought back 
 

(in thousands) 
 

Particulars Number of 

shares 

Shares Outstanding Test (W.N.1) 

Resources Test (W.N.2) 

Debt Equity Ratio Test (W.N.3) 

Maximum number of shares that can be bought back 

[least of the above] 

15 

12 

11 

11 

 

Thus, the lowest being 11,000 shares, the company cannot buy back 14,000 

shares. 
 

Working Notes: 
 

1.   Shares Outstanding Test 
 

Particulars (Shares in 

thousands) 

Number of shares outstanding 
 

25% of the shares outstanding 

60 
 

15 
 

2.   Resources Test 
 

Particulars ` (in thousands) 

Paid up capital 
 

Free reserves (540 + 200 +100) 

Shareholders’ funds 

25% of Shareholders fund 
 

Buy-back price per share 
 

Number of shares that can be bought back 

600 
 

840 
 

1,440 
 

360 
 

` 30 
 

12,000 shares 

3.   Debt Equity Ratio Test: Loans cannot be in excess of twice the 

Equity Funds post Buy-Back 
 

Particulars ` in thousands 
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(a)    Loan funds 

(b)    Minimum  equity  to  be  maintained  after 

buy-back in the ratio of 2:1 (`) (a/2) 

(c)    Present equity shareholders fund (`) 

(d)    Future  equity  shareholders  fund  (`)  (see 

W.N.4) (1,440-110) 

(e)    Maximum permitted buy-back of Equity (`) 

[(d) – (b)] 

(f)     Maximum number of shares that can be 

bought back @ ` 30 per share 

2,000 

1,000 
 

 

1,440 

1,330 
 
 

330 
 
 

11,000 shares 

 

4. Amount transferred to CRR and maximum equity to be bought back 

will be calculated by simultaneous equation method. 
 

Suppose amount transferred to CRR account is ‘x’ and maximum 

permitted buy-back of equity is ‘y’ Then 
 

Equation 1: (Present Equity- Transfer to CRR) - Minimum Equity to be 

maintained = Maximum Permitted Buy-Back 
 

= (1,440 – x) – 1,000 = y 
 

= 440 – x = y                                     (1) 
 

Equation 2 :  Maximum P e r m i t t e d  B u y -Back X  N o m i n a l  V a l u e  P e r  

Share/Offer Price per Share 
 

Y/30 x 10 = x 
 

Or 
 

3x = y                                                                                   (2) 
 

By solving the above two equations we get 
 

x = ` 110 thousands 

y = ` 330 thousands 

 

Alternatively, Maximum number of shares from debt equity ratio test 

may be worked out as follows: 
 

Buy-back price + Face value of equity shares      ` 30 + ` 10 = ` 40 
 

Excess  of  equity  fund  over  the  minimum  equity  to  be  maintained 

1440-1000 = 440 thousands 
 

Number  of  Shares  that  can  be  bought  back  =  440/40  thousands 

= 11 thousands. 
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Answer 4  
 

Journal Entries in the Books of Nice Ltd.
 

 Dr. 

` in ‘000 

Cr. 

` in ‘000 

Business Purchase Account 

To Liquidator of Well Ltd. 

(Consideration payable for the business taken over 

from Well Ltd.) 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

10,620 
 

 
 
 
 
 

19,656 

957 

1,950 

137 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10,620 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,000 

 
 

10,620 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4,850 

1,000 

4,255 

1,975 

10,620 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7,500 

1,620 

1,500 
 
 
 

 

1,000 

Property, Plant and Equipment (120% of ` 16,380) 

Inventory (110% of ` 870) 

Trade receivables 

Goodwill A/c (Balancing figure) 

To Trade payables 

To Debenture Holders Account 

To Loan from bank (4,525-270) 

To Short term borrowings 

To Business Purchase Account 

(Incorporation of various assets and liabilities taken 

over from Well Ltd. at agreed values and difference of 

net assets and purchase consideration debited to 

Goodwill A/c)) 

Liquidator of Well Ltd. 

To Equity Share Capital (75,000x 100) 

To 9% Preference Share Capital 

To Securities premium (7,5000x 20) 

(Discharge of consideration for Well Ltd.’s business) 

Debenture holders A/c 

To 9% Debentures A/c 

(Being  9%  debentures  issued  to  10%  debenture 

holders) 
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Sundry Creditors of Well Ltd. 

To Sundry Debtors of Nice Ltd. 

(Cancellation of mutual owing) 

Dr. 
 
 
 

 

Dr. 

215 
 
 
 

 

55 

 
 

215 
 
 
 

 

55 

Goodwill 

To Bank 

(Being liquidation expenses reimbursed to Well Ltd.) 
 

Working Note: 
 

The purchase consideration will be: 
 

`             Form 

Preference shareholders: 16,200 × 100                  16,20,000     9% Pref. shares 

Equity shareholders:        1,25,000 × 3/5 × 120    90,00,000     Equity shares 

1,06,20,000 
 

10 % Preference shares                                                                   18,00,000 

Less: 10% discount                                                                                       1,80,000 

        16,20,000 

Debenture calculation 
 

  Interest 

10% Debenture 9,00,000 90,000 

Therefore 9% debentures 90,000/9% = 10,00,000  

 

Balance Sheet of Nice Ltd. (After absorption) as at 31st March 2024 
 

  
Particulars Notes ` in ‘000 

 
 

1 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 

3 

I 
 
 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(a) 

Equity and Liabilities 

Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 

Reserves and Surplus 

Non-current liabilities 

Long-term borrowings 

Current liabilities 

Trade payables 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 
 
 

3 
 
 

4 

 
 
 
 

50,120 

21,000 
 
 

25,755 
 
 

20,375 
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1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

(b) 

II 

(a) 
 
 

 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Short term borrowing 

Total 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

Property,    Plant    and    Equipment    and 

Intangibles 

(i)   Property, plant and equipment 

(ii)  Intangible assets 

Non-current investments 

Current assets 

Inventories 

Trade receivables 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

Total 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 

7 

8 

1,975 

1,19,225 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

82,206 

192 

22,500 
 
 

1,257 

8,325 

4,745 

1,19,225 
 

Notes to accounts 
 

   ` in ‘000 

1 Share Capital 

Equity share capital 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

3,90,000 Equity shares of ` 100 each 

(out   of   above   75,000   shares   are   issued   for 

consideration other than cash) 

Preference Shares 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

1,11,200 9% Preference Shares of ` 100 each (9,500 

+ 1,620) 

(out   of   above   16,200   shares   are   issued   for 

consideration other than cash) 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
39,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11,120 
 

 
 

50,120 
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2 Reserves and Surplus 

Securities premium 

 
 

1,500 

 

 
 

3 

Reserves and surplus 

Long-term borrowings 

9 % Debentures (11,200+1,000) 

19,500 
 

 

12,200 

21,000 

 Loan from bank (9,300+4255) 13,555 25,755 

 

4 

 

Trade Payable 

Nice Limited 

 
 
 

15,740 

 

 Well Limited 4,850  

  20,590  

 
 

5 

Less: Inter Company holdings 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

(215) 
 

 

62,550 

20,375 

 Acquired during the year 

Intangibles 

Goodwill (137+55) 

19,656 82,206 
 

 

192 

 

6 

 

Inventories 

 

300 
 

 Acquired during the year 957 1,257 

7 Trade receivables 6,590  

 
 

8 

Acquired during the year (1,585+150) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Nice Limited 

1,735 
 

 

4,800 

8,325 

 Less: Expenses on liquidation (55) 4,745 
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Answer 5 
 

1.   Trade payable (Consolidated) 
 

Best limited 3,80,000 

Add: Cool Ltd 4,10,000 

Less: Elimination (3,00,000) 

Total 4,90,000 
 

2.   Current assets (Consolidated) 
 

Best limited 9,65,000 

Add: Cool Ltd 5,60,000 

Less: Elimination of intercompany owing (3,00,000) 

Total 12,25,000 
 

3. Minority interest Cool Ltd  

 Share Capital (20,00,000 x 20%) 4,00,000 

 Add: Securities premium (2,20,000 x 20%) 44,000 

 Add: General Reserve (84,000 x 20%) 16,800 

 Add: Profit and loss balance (20% of 2,70,000) 54,000 

 Total 5,14,800 
 

4. 
 

Goodwill/Capital Reserve on Acquisition of Cool Ltd.: 
 

 Purchase Consideration 14,80,000 

 Less: Share Capital (20,00,000 x 80%) 16,00,000 

 Less: Securities premium (2,20,000 x 80%) 1,76,000 

 Less: General Reserve (84,000 x 80%) 67,200 

 Less: Profit and loss balance opening (30,000 x 80%) 24,000 

 Less: Pre acquisition profits 

(2,70,000-30,000) x 10/12 x 80% 

 

 

1,60,000 

 Capital Reserves 5,47,200 
 

5. 
 

Goodwill/Capital Reserve on Acquisition of Good Ltd. 
 

 Purchase Consideration 3,80,000 
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 Less: Share Capital (10,00,000 x 25%) 2,50,000 

 Less: General Reserve (1,20,000 x 25%) 30,000 

 Less: Profit and loss balance (50,000 x 25%) 12,500 

 Goodwill 87,500 
 

6. 
 

Profit and Loss Account (Consolidated) 
 

 Best limited 3,26,000 

 Add: Post acquisition profit of Cool Ltd  

 {(2,70,000-30,000) x 2/12}80% 32,000 

 Total 3,58000 

 

7.   General Reserve (Consolidated) 
 

Best limited                                                        2,69,000 
 

8.   Revenue (Consolidated) as per para no 15 and 22 of AS 21 
 

Revenue of Best Ltd 56,00,000 

Add: Revenue of Cool Ltd. (38,00,000 × 2/ 12)   6,33,333 

 62,33,333 
 

9.   Cost of materials purchased/consumed (Consolidated) as per para no 

15 and 22 of AS 21 
 

Raw material of Best Ltd 36,50,000 

Add: Raw material of Cool Ltd (31,20,000x 2/12)   5,20,000 

 41,70,000 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S- 14



 

Answer 6 
 

(a)                              In the books of Mr. Day 

Investment Account 

(Equity shares in Square Ltd.) 
 

Date Particulars No. of 

shares 

Amount 

(`) 

Date Particulars No. of 

shares 

Amount 

(`) 

1.4.23 
 
 
 

31.7.23 
 

 

5.10.23 

To Balance 

b/d 
 

 

To Bonus issue 

(W.N.1) 

To   Bank   A/c 

(right shares) 

(W.N.4) 

25,000 
 
 
 

5,000 
 

 

33,750 

6,25,000 
 
 
 

 
- 

6,75,000 

31.3.24 By Balance 

c/d (Bal. 

fig.) 

63,750 13,00,000 

63,750 13,00,000 63,750 13,00,000 

Working Notes: 
 

(1)  Bonus shares           = 

 
 

25,000 

5 

 

 
 

= 5,000 shares

 

(2)  Right shares             = 
25,000 + 5,000 × 3 

2 

 

= 45,000 shares

(3)  Sale of rights           =         45,000 shares ×  
1 
 × ` 5 

4 

=         11,250 x 5 = 56,250 
 

` 56,250  to be  credited  to  statement  of 

profit and loss 

(4)  Rights subscribed =            45,000 shares × 
3 
× ̀  20 = ` 6,75,000 

4
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Or 
 

In determining the cost of inventories, it is appropriate to exclude certain 

costs and recognise them as expenses in the period in which they are 

incurred. Examples of such costs are: 
 

(a)  Abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour, or other production 

costs; 
 

(b)  Storage costs, unless the production process requires such storage. 
 

(c)   Administrative  overheads  that  do  not contribute  to bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. 
 

(d)  Selling and distribution costs. 
 

(b)                                          Journal Entries 
 

  ` ` 

Equity Share Capital (old) A/c 

To Equity Share Capital (` 10) A/c 

To Cash A/c 

To 10% Debentures A/c 

To Securities premium 

To Capital Reduction/Reconstruction 

A/c 

(Being new equity shares, 8% Debentures 

issued, cash of ` 50,000 and the balance 

transferred to Reconstruction account as 

per the Scheme) 

Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dr. 

15,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5,00,000 

 
 

5,00,000 

50,000 

7,50,000 

1,50,000 

50,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4,45,000 

55,000 

8% Debentures A/c 

To Freehold Property A/c 

To Capital Reduction/Reconstruction 

A/c 

(Being   the   debenture   holders   claim 

settled partly and foregone partly as per 

reconstruction scheme) 
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Particulars Amount 

` 

Particulars Amount 

` 

To Opening stock 

To  Goods  received 

by Head office 

To Expenses 
 
 

To Net profit (Bal fig) 

2,70,000 

17,82,000 
 

 

56,000 
 
 

3,34,000 

24,42,000 

By Sales 

By Goods returned by 

Branch 

By Closing stock (Refer 

W.N.) 

19,50,000 

75,000 
 

 

4,17,000 
 

 
 
 

24,42,000 

 

 

 

Capital Reduction/Reconstruction A/c 

To Capital Reserves A/c 

(Being  balance  in  capital  reduction 

account transferred to Capital Reserves 

A/c) 

Dr. 1,05,000 
 
 

1,05,000 

 

(c)  (i)                        In the books of Kullu Branch 
 

Trading and Profit and Loss Account 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

(ii) 
 

Calculation of Closing Stock 
 

 Cost price 100 

 Invoice price 120 (100+20) 

 Sales price 150 (120+25% of 120) 

 Opening Stock 2,70,000 

 Goods received 17,82,000 

 Less: Goods Returned      75,000 

  19,77,000 

 Less: Cost of Goods Sold (Invoice price) 15,60,000 

 Closing Stock 4,17,000 

Stock reserve in respect of unrealised profit 
 

= 4,17,000 x (20/120) = ` 69,500 
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Part I 

 

Answer Key 
 

MCQ No. Correct Option 

1. D 

2. A 

3. C 

4. No Correct Option 

5. C 

6. B 

7. C 

8. B 

9. A 

10. C 

11. B 

12. A 

13. D 

14. C 

15. A 
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Part II 

 

Answer 1 
 

(a)  Computation of Basic Earnings per Share 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Working notes: 
 

1.   Computation of shares issued on bonus 
 
  

No. of shares outstanding as on 31st March 2024 8,00,000 

Less: Shares issued on 1st Jan 2024 (2,00,000) 

Outstanding shares as on 31st December 2023 6,00,000 

Bonus shares (6,00,000 x 1/(1+5)) 1,00,000 

Outstanding shares before bonus issue as on 1st April 

2023    (6,00,000x5/6) 

5,00,000 

 

2.   Weighted Average number of Equity shares 
 

 Shares Months Weighted 

average 

 Earnings 

₹ 

No. of 

Shares 

EPS ₹ 

Earnings   per   share   for   the   year 

2023- 2024 

31,20,000 6,50,000 

(W.N 2) 

4.80 

Computation of Dilutive Earnings per Share 

 
Earnings 

₹ 

Shares EPS ₹ 

Net profit for the year 31,20,000 
  

Weighted  average  number  of  shares 

(W.N.  2)  outstanding  during  year  on 

31.3.2024                                          (i) 

 
6,50,000 

 

Number of shares under option 
 

80,000 
 

Number of shares that would have been 

issued    at    fair    value:    (80,000    x 

20.00)/25.00 

 
(64,000) 

 

No. of incremental shares issued for no 

consideration                                     (ii) 

  
 

16,000 

 

Diluted earnings per share after options 31,20,000 6,66,000 

(i +ii) 

4.68 

12% Convertible Debentures (W.N. 3) 2,52,000 1,20,000 - 

Diluted earnings 33,72,000 7,86,000 4.29 
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Opening balance 

as on 1.4.2023 

Bonus 

Further issue of 

shares on 1.1.2024 

5,00,000(W.N.1) 
 

 

1,00,000 

2,00,000 

12/12 
 

 

12/12 

3/12 

5,00,000 
 

 

1,00,000 

50,000 
 
 

6,50,000 
 

3.   12% Convertible Debentures 
 

Increase in net profit       {₹  30,00,000 x 0.12 x ( 1 - 

0.30)} 

₹ 2,52,000 

No. of incremental shares   {30,000 x 4} 1,20,000 
 

 

(b)  Computation of annual lease payment: 
 

Particulars 
 

₹ 

Cost of equipment 12,50,000.00 

Unguaranteed residual value 1,20,000.00 

Present value of unguaranteed residual value 
 

(₹ 1,20,000 x 0.735) 88,200.00 

Present value of lease payments 
 

(₹ 12,50,000 -₹ 88,200) 11,61,800.00 

Present value of annuity for four years is 3.312 
 

Annual lease payment [11,61,800/3.312] 3,50,785.02 

 

Classification of lease: 

Parameter 1: 

The present value of the lease payment i.e. ₹ 11,61,800 which equals 92.94% 

of the fair market value i.e. ₹ 12,50,000. 
 

The present value of minimum lease payments substantially covers the fair 

value of the leased asset. 
 

Parameter 2: 
 

The lease term (i.e. 4 years) covers the major part of the life of asset (i.e. 6 

years). 

Therefore, it constitutes a finance lease. 

Computation of Unearned Finance Income: 
 

Particulars ₹ 

Total lease payments (Rs 3,50,785.02 x 4) 14,03,140.08 

Add: Unguaranteed residual value 1,20,000.00 

Gross investment in the lease 15,23,140.08 
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Less:  Present  value  of  lease  payments  and  residual 

value i.e. 

Net Investment (₹ 88,200 + ₹ 11,61,800) 

 
 

(12,50,000.00) 

Unearned finance income 2,73,140.08 
 

(c)  Difference between Defined Contribution Plan and Defined Benefit 

Plan: 
 

S No. Defined Contribution Plan Defined Benefit Plan 

1 Fixed Contributions are paid by 

the employer into a separate 

fund and will have no 

obligation to pay further 

contributions. 

Detailed actuarial calculation is 

performed to determine the 

charge. 

2 The employer has no obligation 

to pay further contributions if 

the fund does not hold 

sufficient assets to pay all 

employee benefits and the 

employee has to bear the 

investment and actuarial risk. 

The employer ensures that 

sufficient funds are available to 

meet the promised benefits 

regardless of fund performance 

and the actuarial and investment 

risk fall on the employer. 

 

 

Computation of defined benefit liability /Asset: 
 

Particulars ₹ in lakhs 

Present  value  of  the  defined  benefit  obligation  as  on 

31.3.2024 

36.00 

Less: Past service cost not yet recognized (7.50) 

 28.50 

Less: The fair value of plan assets (38.50) 

Defined benefit Asset 10.00 
 

In case where fair value of plan assets is high, it may so happen that the net 

amount under defined benefit liability turns negative (giving rise to net 

assets). 
 

As per AS 15 the enterprise, in such a situation, should measure the 

resulting asset at the lower of: 
 

(i)   the amount so determined, i.e. ₹ 10 lakh; and 
 

(ii)  the present value of available future refunds from the plan i.e. ₹ 6 lakh. 

Therefore, defined benefit asset will be recognised at ₹ 6 lakhs. 
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Answer 2 
 

(a)                              Journal Entries in books of Sustain Limited 
 

  ₹ ₹ 

1. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 

Bank Account 

To Equity Share Capital Account 

(Balance of ₹ 2 per share on 

25,000 equity shares called up) 

Dr. 50,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

7,50,000 

 
 

50,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3,75,000 

Equity Share Capital (₹ 10) Account 

To  Equity  Share  Capital  (₹   

5) Account 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 

To Capital Reduction Account 

(Reduction  of  equity  shares  of  ₹ 

10 each  to  shares  of  ₹ 5  each  as  

per reconstruction scheme) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 
 

 

Dr. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2,50,000 

25,000 
 

 

50,000 

3,75,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2,25,000 
 

 

75,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3,25,000 

8   %   Cumulative   Preference   Share 

Capital (₹ 10) 

A/c 

To   9%   Cumulative   Preference 

Share Capital (₹ 7.5) A/c 

To Capital Reduction A/c 

(Being Preference shares of ₹ 10 

each reduced by ₹ 2.5 each per share 

by changing the rate of dividend from 

8% to 9% and the balance transferred 

to Capital Reduction A/c.) Capital Reduction A/c 

To   Preference   share   dividend 

payable A/c 

(Being   arrear   of   Preference   share 

dividend payable for one year) 

Preference share dividend payable A/c 

To Equity Share Capital (₹ 5) A/c 

(Being Equity Shares of ₹ 5 each 

issued against arrears of 2 years 

Preference Share dividend) (W.N.1) 

10% Debentures Account 

Interest  on  Debentures  Outstanding 

A/c 

Trade payables Account 

To Mr. X 

(The total amount due to X, transferred 

to his account) 
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7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 

Bank Account 

To Mr. X 

(The  amount  paid  by  X  under  the 

reconstruction scheme) 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

20,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3,45,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2,00,000 

20,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1,00,000 

20,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

80,000 

20,000 

 
 

20,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1,82,500 

1,62,500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,32,000 
 
 

88,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1,20,000 

Mr. X 

To 12% Debentures Account 

To Capital Reduction A/c 

(The cancellation of 50% of the total 

debt of Mr. X and the issue of 12% new 

debentures for the balance amount as 

per the reconstruction scheme) 

10% Debentures A/c 

Interest  on  Debentures  Outstanding 

A/c 

To   9%   Cumulative   Preference 

Share capital A/c 

To Capital Reduction A/c 

(Being 9% preference share capital 

issued to 10% debenture-holders for 

60% of their claims. The balance is 

transferred  to  capital  reduction 

account as per the reconstruction 

scheme) 

Provision for Tax A/c 

Capital Reduction A/c 

To Bank A/c 

(Being payment of tax liability in full 

settlement) 

Trade payables A/c (1,30,000-50,000) 

Capital reduction A/c 

 
 
 
 

 
12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To Inventory A/c 

[Being   settlement   of   creditors   by 

giving inventory] 

 
 
 
 

 
Dr. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
1,84,600 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

30,000 

4,600 
 

 

1,50,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital reduction A/c 

To Investment A/c 

To  Provision  for  bad  debt  A/c 

(2,30,000 x 2%) 

To Plant & Machinery (7,50,000x 

20%) 

(Investment brought to their market 

value, Plant & machinery is written 

down by 20% & Provision for Bad 

debts of 2% created under the scheme 

of reconstruction) 
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13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14. 
 
 
 

 

15. 

Bank A/c 

To 12% debentures A/c 

(New 12 % debentures issued to pay 

off bank overdraft and maintain cash 

balance) 

 

Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

 

2,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65,000 
 
 
 

 

4,27,900 

 

 
2,00,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65,000 
 
 
 

 

60,000 

2,50,000 

20,000 

97,900 

Bank Overdraft 

To Bank A/c 

(Bank overdraft paid) 

Capital reduction A/c 

To Goodwill A/c 

To Profit and loss A/c 

To Inventory 

To Capital reserve A/c 

[Being goodwill and profit and loss 

account (Dr. bal.), balance inventory; 

and balance of capital reduction 

account transferred to capital reserve] 
 

 

Notes to accounts 
 

 ₹ 

1.         Share Capital 

Equity share capital 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

84,600 equity shares of ₹ 5 each 

(75,000+9,600) 

47,600, 9 % Cumulative Preference Shares of ₹ 7.50 

each 

(30,000+17,600) 

Total 

 

 
 
 
 
 

4,23,000 

3,57,000 

7,80,000 
 

 

Working note 
 

1. Calculation of the number of equity shares issued for 2 years arrear 

of preference share dividend 
 

3,00,000x 8%x 2 = 48,000 
 

Equity share of ₹ 5 per share issued= 48,000/5= 9,600 shares 
 

2.                                     Cash & bank Account 
 

To Uncalled capital 

To Mr. X 

To 12% Debentures A/c 

(bal. fig.) 

50,000 

20,000 

2,00,000 
 

 

2,70,000 

By Bank Overdraft 

By Tax 

By Balance C/d 

65,000 

1,20,000 

85,000 
 

 

2,70,000 
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3.   The new face value of preference share is 10-2.5= ₹ 7.5 
 

Calculation of Number of 9% Preference shares issued in consideration 

of reduction: 
 

1,32,000/7.5 = 17,600 
 
 
 

Answer 3 
 

(a)  Provision to be made for warranty under AS 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ 
 

As at 31st March 2023    = ₹ 25,000 x 2.5% + ₹ 47,000 x 2.5% + ₹ 

1,10,000 x 4.5% 
 

= ₹ 625 + ₹ 1,175+ ₹ 4,950 = ₹ 6,750 
 

As at 31st March 2024    = ₹ 1,10,000x 2.5% + ₹ 34,000 x 4.5% +₹  

75,000 x 4.5% 
 

= ₹ 2,750 + ₹ 1,530+ ₹ 3,375 = ₹ 7,655 

 

Amount  debited  to  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  for  year  ended 

31st March 2024 
 

 ₹ 

Balance of provision required as on 31.03.2024 

Less: Opening Balance as on 1.4.2023 

Amount debited to Statement of Profit and loss 

7,655 

(6,750) 

905 

Note: No provision will be made on 31st March 2024 in respect of sales 

amounting ₹ 42,000, 25,000 and 47,000 made on as the warranty period 

 

(b)  Cash Flow from Operating Activities for the Year Ended 31 March 2024 
 

Particulars ₹ 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Retained earnings (1,10,000-60,000) 

Adjustments for non-cash items 

Goodwill Amortisation 

Interest expenses 
 

 
 

Changes in Working Capital 

Decrease in Trade Receivables 

Increase in Inventory 

Decrease in Trade Payables 
 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

 

 
50,000 

 

 
 

30,000 
 

25,000 

1,05,000 
 

 

30,000 

(25,000) 

(15,000) 

95,000 
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities for the Year Ended 31 March 2024 
 

Increase in Share Capital 1,00,000 

Increase in Bank Loan 50,000 

Issue of 10% Debentures 1,00,000 

Dividend Paid (50,000) 

Interest Paid (20,000) 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,80,000 
 

 

 

Answer 4 
 

Adjustment   in   bank   balance   and   profit   &   loss   account   before 

amalgamation 
 

Other assets of Bright limited 
 

 ₹ In lakhs 

Book value 

Less: Sale proceeds 

Loss on sale of other assets (debited to Profit & Loss A/c) 

1.75 

(0.50) 

1.25 
 

The new balance of Bank = 2.85 +0.5= 3.35 (₹ In lakhs) 
 

The new balance of Profit & Loss A/c = 4-1.25= 2.75 (₹ In lakhs) 
 

 

(a)  (i)                                    Realisation Account 
 

 Light   Ltd. 

(₹  In 

lakhs) 

Bright  

Ltd. (₹  In 

lakhs) 

 Light 

Ltd. (₹ In 

lakhs) 

Bright Ltd. 

(₹ In 

lakhs) 

To   Sundry        

Assets, transfer : 

 

To   Land & 

Building, 

 

 

 

58.00 

 

 

 

       44.00 

By Long           

term provision 

 

By Trade 

payables 

1.50 

 

 

3.40 

- 

 

 

2.00 

To   Plant & 

machinery 
 
 To   Other assets 

To   Inventories 

To   Trade 

receivable 

To   Cash      &      

Bank Balance 

To   Equity 

Shareholders       

- profit 

7.50 

                           

3.20 

5.75 

4.30 

 

3.15 
 
 

3.00 

4.50 
 
 

- 

7.10 

5.80 

 

3.35 

 

1.25 

By Rainbow 
Ltd .  - 
purchase 

80.00 64.00 

84.90        66.00 84.90 66.00 
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(ii)                                   Shareholders Account 
 

 Light 

ltd. (₹ In 

lakhs) 

Bright 

Ltd. (₹ 

In lakhs) 

 Light 

Ltd. (₹ 

In lakhs) 

Bright 

Ltd. (₹ 

In lakhs) 

To Shares         

in 

Rainbow 

Ltd. 

80.0

0 

64.0

0 

By   Share Capital 

A/c - transfer 

By   Statutory 

reserve 

By   General 

Reserve 

By   Securities 

premium 

By   Profit & Loss 

A/c 

By   Realisation A/c 

50.0

0 

 

2.0

0 

18.0

0 

- 

7.0

0 
3.0
0 

40.00 

 

- 

15.00 

5.00 

2.75 
1.25  

80.0
0 

 
64.0
0 

 
80.0
0 

 
64.0
0 

 

 

(b)                              Balance Sheet of Super Rainbow Ltd. 
 

Particulars Notes (₹ In lakhs) 

Equity and Liabilities 

1              Shareholders' funds 

A     Share capital 

B     Reserves and Surplus 

2              Non-current liabilities 

A         Long-term provisions 

3              Current liabilities 

A     Trade Payables 

Total 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 

 
 
 
 

144.00 

1.00 
 

 

1.50 
 

 

5.40 

151.90 

 Assets  

1  Non-current assets 

 A Property, Plant and Equipment 3 121.20 

 B Intangible assets 4 1.25 

2  Current assets   

  Inventories  12.85 

  Trade receivables  10.10 

  Cash and cash equivalents  6.50 

  Total  151.90 
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(c)  Notes to Accounts 
 

  (₹ In lakhs) 

1. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 

Share Capital 

Equity share capital 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

1,44,000 Equity shares of ₹ 100 each 

(all shares are issued for consideration other than cash) 

Reserves and Surplus 

Statutory Reserves 

Amalgamation Adjustment Reserves 

Capital Reserves 
 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land and Buildings 

Plant and Machinery 

Other Assets 

 
 

Intangible assets 

Goodwill 

 

 
 
 
 
 

144.00 
 
 
 
 

2.00 

(2.00) 

1.00 

1.00 

 
 

106.00 

12.00 

3.20 

121.20 

 
 

1.25 
 

 

 

Working notes: 
 

1.   Calculation of purchase consideration 
 

 Light ltd. 

(₹ In 

lakhs) 

Bright Ltd. 

(₹ In 

lakhs) 80,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 100 80  

64,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 100  64 
 

 

2.   Calculation of Net assets taken over 
 

  (₹ In lakhs)      

Particulars  Light Ltd. Bright Ltd. 
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Assets taken over: 

Land and Buildings 

Plant and Machinery 

Other Assets 

Inventory 

Trade Receivable 

Cash at Bank (2.85 + 0.50) 
 
 

Liabilities taken over: 

Long term provisions 

Trade payable 
 

 

Net assets taken over 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(i) 
 
 
 
 

 

(ii) 

(i) – (ii) 

 

 

62.00 

7.50 

3.20 

5.75 

4.30 

  3.15 

85.90 
 

 

1.50 

3.40 

  4.90 

81.00 

 

 

44.00 

4.50 

- 

7.10 

5.80 

  3.35 

64.75 
 

 

- 

2.00 

  2.00 

62.75 
 

 

3.   Calculation of Goodwill/Capital Reserve 
 

 (₹ In lakhs) 

Particulars Light Ltd. Bright Ltd. 

Net Assets takeover 

Less: Purchase Consideration 

Goodwill/ (Capital Reserve) 

81.00 

(80.00) 

62.75 

(64.00) 

(1.00) 1.25 

 

 
 

Answer 5 
 

Consolidated Balance Sheet of Super Ltd. 

and its subsidiary Clear Ltd. as at 31st March, 2024 
 

Particulars Note No. (₹) 

I.     Equity and Liabilities 

(1)  Shareholders’ Funds 

(a)   Share Capital 

(b)  Reserves and Surplus 

(2)  Minority Interest [W.N.4] 

(3)  Non-current Liabilities 

(a)   Long term borrowings 

(4)  Current Liabilities 

(a)  Short-term borrowings 

(b)  Trade payables 

Total 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 
 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 
 

4 
 
 

 
 
 
 

95,00,000 

34,63,750 

15,56,250 
 

 

7,00,000 
 

 

4,50,000 

4,63,750 

1,61,33,750 
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II.    Assets 

(1)  Non-current assets 

(a)  Property, Plant & Equipment 

(b)  Intangible Assets – Goodwill 

(2)  Current assets 

(a)  Inventory 

(b)  Trade Receivables 

(c)   Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total 

 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 
 

6 

7 

 
 
 
 

1,31,00,000 

4,00,000 
 

 

12,10,000 

9,28,750 

4,95,000 

1,61,33,750 
 

 

Notes to Accounts 
 

  ₹ ₹ 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
3. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 

Share Capital 

Equity Share Capital 
 

8,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid up 

Preference Share Capital 

15,000 Preference Shares of ₹ 100 each fully 

paid up 

Total 

Reserves and Surplus 

General Reserve (WN 5) 

Profit & Loss A/c (WN 5) 

Total 

Long term borrowings 

10% Debentures 

9% Debentures 

Total 

Trade payables 

Super Ltd. 

Clear Ltd. 

Less: Mutual Owing 

Property Plant & Equipment 

Land & Building 

Super Ltd. 

Clear Ltd. 

Plant & Machinery 

Super Ltd. 

Clear Ltd. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,65,000 

2,45,000 

(1,46,250) 
 

 
 
 

65,00,000 

45,50,000 
 

 

9,50,000 

6,75,000 

 
 
 
 

80,00,000 
 

 

15,00,000 
 
 

95,00,000 
 

 

20,37,500 
 

14,26,250 
 

34,63,750 
 

 

5,00,000 

2,00,000 

7,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4,63,750 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,10,50,000 
 
 
 
 

16,25,000 
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Furniture & Fittings 

Super Ltd.                                                     2,50,000 

Clear Ltd.                                                      1,75,000         4,25,000 

6      Inventory 

Super Ltd.                                                     6,75,000 

Clear Ltd.                                                      5,65,000 

Less: Unrealized profit                                               (30,000)       12,10,000 

7      Trade Receivables 

Super Ltd.                                                     5,85,000 

Clear Ltd.                                                      4,90,000 

Less: Mutual Owing                                                (1,46,250)        9,28,750 
 

 

Working Notes: 
 

1.   Shareholding Pattern 
 

Super Ltd 5,00,000 Shares 

Holding 75% 3,75,000 shares 

Minority Interest 25% 1,25,000 shares 
 

 

2.   Analysis of Profit of Clear Ltd. 
 

 Capital 

Profit 

Revenue 

Reserve 

Revenue 

Profit 

Opening Balance of General Reserve 

Opening Balance of P&L 

Total ₹ 

Share of Minority (25%) 

Share of Holding (75%) 

- 

- 

6,50,000 

- 

- 

5,75,000 

6,50,000 5,75,000 

1,62,500 

4,87,500 

1,43,750 

4,31,250 
 

 

3.   Computation of Cost of Control (Goodwill / Capital Reserve) 
 

Computation                    ₹ 

Cost of Investment 

Less: Share of Equity Capital in 

Clear Ltd. 

Given 

50,00,000 × 75% 

41,50,000 

(37,50,000) 

Less: Pre -acquisition Profit 

Goodwill 

WN 2 - 

4,00,000 
 

 

4.   Calculation of Minority Interest 
 

Particulars  ₹ 
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Share in Equity Share Capital 

Share in Revenue Reserve 

Share in profit & loss 

Total 

50,00,000 × 25% 
 

6,50,000 × 25% 
 

5,75,000 × 25% 

12,50,000 
 

1,62,500 
 

1,43,750 
 

15,56,250 
 

5.   General Reserve and Consolidated Profit & Loss A/c 
 

Particulars General Reserve Profit & Loss A/c 

Balance from Balance Sheet 

Revenue Profit (WN 2) 

Revenue Reserve (WN 2) 

Unrealized Profit 

Total 

15,50,000 

- 

4,87,500 

- 

10,25,000 

4,31,250 

- 

(30,000) 

20,37,500 14,26,250 
 
 

 

Answer 6 
 

(a)  (i) 
 

Reporting entity Related party 

AX Limited BX Limited (AX Limited controls BX Limited 

directly as holding company 

CX   Limited   (AX   Limited   has   significant 

influence in CX Limited indirectly through BX 

Limited) 

CX Limited AX   Limited   (AX   Limited   has   significant 

influence in CX Limited indirectly through BX 

Limited) 

BX   Limited   (BX   Limited   has   significant 

influence in CX Limited) 

DX Limited (DX Limited holds 40% shares, 

means substantial interest of more than or 

equal to 20%, hence significant influence exists 

in this case) 

EX Limited DX Limited (DX Limited holds 49% shares, 

means substantial interest of more than or 

equal to 20%, hence significant influence exists 

in this case) 
 

(ii)  No, DX would still be a related party of EX Limited EX Limited will report 

DX Limited as a related party as per AS 18. However, the transaction for 

the period in which the related party relationship exists will only be 

disclosed. 
 

OR 
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Profit and Loss Account of Sky & Associate   

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Opening Stock 
 

To Purchases 
 

To Gross Profit * 
 

 
 
 
 

To Deferred Expense 

To Other Expenses 

To Bad Debts 

To Penalty 
 

To Depre. (180 – 160) 

To Interest on loan 

To Net Profit 

1,15,000 
 

6,50,000 
 

1,33,000 

By Sales 
 

By Closing Stock 
 

 
 
 
 

By Gross Profit 
 

By Discount 

8,20,000 
 

78,000 

8,98,000 8,98,000 

 

 
9,000 

 

25,000 
 

5,000 
 

2,500 
 

20,000 
 

1,600 
 

73,900 

1,33,000 
 

4,000 

1,37,000 1,37,000 
 

(b)                                          In the books of Z Limited 

Journal Entries 
 

 Particulars  (₹) (₹) 

1) Bank A/c 

Profit & Loss A/c 

To Investments 

Dr. 

Dr. 

32,00,000 

8,00,000 

 
 
 
 

40,00,000 

(Being investment sold for the 

purpose   of   buy-back   of   Equity 

Shares) 

) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3) 
 

 
 
 
 

Equity share capital A/c 

Premium payable on buy-back A/c 

To Equity shares buy-back A/c 

(Being the amount due on buy-back 

of equity shares) 

Dr. 

Dr. 

 
 
 
 

 

Dr 
 

 
 
 
 

8,00,000 

4,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

12,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

12,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 

12,00,000 
 

 
 

Equity shares buy-back A/c 

To Bank A/c 

(Being payment made for buy-back of 

equity shares) 
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4) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5) 

Securities Premium A/c 

To  Premium  payable  on  buy- 

back 

(Being premium payable on buy-back 

charged from Securities premium) 

 

Dr 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr 

 

4,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8,00,000 

 
 
 

4,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8,00,000 

Profit & Loss A/c 

To Capital Redemption Reserve 

A/c 

(Being creation of capital redemption 

reserve to the extent of the equity 

shares bought back) 
 

(c)                                           In the books of Branch 
 

Journal Entries 
 

 
Particulars 

 ₹ ₹ 

1) 
 

 
 
 
 

2) 

Head office account 
 

To Commission Income 
 

(Being commission income recognized) 

Creditors A/c 

To Head office account 
 

(Being H.O. paid off a creditor directly) 

Dr 
 

 
 
 
 

Dr 

7,500 
 

 
 
 
 

12,000 

 

 
7,500 

 

 
 
 
 

12,000 

3) 
 

4) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6) 

No entry in Branch Books 
 

Head office account 
 

To Salary A/c 
 

(Being    amount    debited    to    salary 

account by mistake now rectified) 

 

 
Dr 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Dr 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dr 

 

 
9,800 

 
 
 
 
 

 

18,000 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5,500 

 
 
 

 
9,800 

 
 
 
 
 

 

18,000 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5,500 

Head office account 
 

To Bank A/c 
 

(Being furniture purchased by branch 

retained by H.O.) 
 

Head Office A/c 
 

To Bank A/c 
 

(Being expenses incurred on behalf of 

other branches, due from H.O.) 
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Answer Key 
 

MCQ. No. Correct Answer 

1 B 

2 A 

3 C 

4 D 

5 C 

6 C 

7 C 

8 A 

9 D 

10 B 

11 B 

12 A 

13 C 

14 D 

15 A 

S- 35
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PART – II – Descriptive Questions 
 
 

Answer 1 
 

(a)  (i)   (i)   Constructing or acquiring a new asset may result in incremental 

costs that would have been avoided if the asset had not been 

constructed or acquired. 

(ii)   These costs are not to be included in the cost of the asset if they 

are not directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management. 
 

(iii)  The costs to be incurred by the company are in the nature of costs 

of relocating or reorganizing operations of the company and do 

not meet the requirement of AS 10 (Revised) 
 

(iv)  Therefore, these costs cannot be capitalized. 
 

 

(ii)  Computation of cost of land 
 

Particulars  ` ` 

Purchase Price 
 
 

 
Stamp      Duty      and 

Registration Charges 

250    hectares    x 

`    25,000      per 

hectares 

5% of ` 62,50,000 

 62,50,000 
 
 

 
3,12,500 

 

Legal and Consultancy 

Fees 

Demolition    Expenses 

 
 

 
`    12,60,000     x 

 
 

 
37,85,000 

4,75,000

(Net       of       Salvage 

Income) 

Cost of Land 

(100/105) (12,00,000)    25,85,000 

 

                      96,22,500
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(b)  Alternative -1 
 

Considering the Examinee has calculated Average Cost directly for shares 

sold and for Closing Balance of Shares: 

 

Investment Account in Books of Ms. Neha 
 

(Scrip: Equity Shares in Nexus Ltd.) 
 

 No. Amount   No. Amount 

 `    ` 

1.4.2024 To Bal b/d 20,000 2,40,000 1.11.2024 By Bank 11,500 2,99,000 

30.4.2024 To Bonus 4,000 _  (Sale     of   

     shares)   

31.8.2024 To    Bank 9,000 1,26,000 31.3.2025 By      Bal. 21,500 2,38,455 

 (Rights    c/d   

 Shares)       

1.11.2024 To      P&L 

A/c (Profit 

 1,71,455     

 on sale of       

 shares)         

  33,000 5,37,455   33,000 5,37,455 
 

 

Working Notes: 

(1)   Bonus Shares = (20,000) /5 = 4,000 shares 

(2)   Right Shares = (20,000 + 4,000)/4*3 = 18,000 shares 

(3)  Rights shares sold = 18,000×50% = 9,000 shares 
 

(4)  Dividend received = 20,000×10×15% = ` 30,000 will be taken to P&L 

Statement 

 

(5)  Average Cost of shares sold: 
 

Average Cost =  
(2, 40, 000 +1, 26, 000) 

x 11,500 
33, 000 

 

= ` 1,27,545 
 

(6)  Profit on sale of 11,500 shares 
 

= Sales proceeds – Average cost 
 

Sales proceeds = ` 2,99,000 
 

Profit = ` 2,99,000– ` 1,27,545= ` 1,71,455. 

(7)  Cost of shares on 31.3.2025 

(2, 40, 000 +1, 26, 000) 
x 21,500 = 2,38,455 

33, 000 
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(8)  Sale of rights amounting ` 27,000 (` 3 x 9,000 shares) will not be shown 

in investment A/c but will directly be taken to P & L statement. 
 

Alternative - 2 
 

Calculate Average Cost per Unit first and then worked out the cost of shares 

sold and closing balance of shares using average unit cost: 
 

Investment Account in Books of Ms. Neha 
 

(Scrip: Equity Shares in Nexus Ltd.) 
 

  No. Amount   No. Amount 

   `    ` 

1.4.2024 

30.4.2024 

 
31.8.2024 

 

 
 

1.11.2024 

To Bal b/d 

To Bonus 

 
To      Bank 

(Rights 

Shares) 

To   P&L 

A/c (Profit 

on  sale  of 

shares) 

20,000 

4,000 

 
9,000 

 
 
 
 
 

 
   

33,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,7 

2,40,000 

_ 

 
1,26,000 

 

 
 

1,435(*) 

1.11.2024 
 

 
 

31.3.2025 

By Bank 

(Sale      of 

shares) 

By Bal. c/d 

11,500 
 

 
 

21,500 

2,99,000 
 

 
 

2,38,435 

5,37,435 33,000 5,37,435 
 

(*) rounding off difference of ` 30 adjusted i.e. 1,71,465 – 30 = 1,71,435 

 

Working Notes: 

(1)   Bonus Shares = (20,000) /5 = 4,000 shares 

(2)   Right Shares = (20,000 + 4,000)/4*3 = 18,000 shares 

(3)  Rights shares sold = 18,000×50% = 9,000 shares 
 

(4)  Dividend received = 20,000×10×15% = ` 30,000 will be taken to P&L 

statement 
 

(5)  Average Cost per Share: 
 

= (2,40,000 + 1,26,000) / (20,000 + 4,000 + 9,000) 
 

= (3,66,000 / 33,000) 
 

= 11.09 per share (rounded off to 2-decimal places) 

Average Cost = (11,500 × 11.09) = ` 1,27,535 

(6)  Profit on sale of 11,500 shares 
 

= Sales proceeds – Average cost 
 

Sales proceeds = ` 2,99,000 
 

Profit = ` 2,99,000 – ` 1,27,535 = ` 1,71,465. 

(7)  Cost of shares on 31.3.2025 

21,500 x 11.09 = ` 2,38,435 
 

(8)  Sale of rights amounting ` 27,000 (` 3 x 9,000 shares) will not be shown 

in investment A/c but will directly be taken to P & L statement. 

S- 38



 
 
 

Answer 2 
 

Balance Sheet of Bela Ltd. as at 31st March, 2025 
 

Particulars Note No ` 

Equity and Liabilities 

1   Shareholders' funds 

a    Share capital 

b   Reserves and Surplus 

2   Non-current liabilities 

a    Long-term borrowings 

3   Current liabilities 

a    Trade Payables 

b   Other current liabilities 

c    Short-term provisions 

Total 

ASSETS 

 
 
 
 

1 

2 
 

 

3 
 

 

4 

5 

6 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

 

8 

9 

10 

 
 
 
 

9,00,000 

1,66,000 
 

 

4,17,000 
 

 

2,45,000 

24,000 

     12,000 

17,64,000 
 
 
 
 

12,70,000 
 

 

2,01,000 

2,38,000 

     55,000 

17,64,000 

1 
 

 

2 

Non-current assets 

a    PPE 

Current assets 

a 

b 

c 

Inventories 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total 
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Notes to accounts 
 

  ` 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 

Share Capital 

Equity share capital 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up 

6,000 Equity Shares of `100 each 

Preference share capital 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

3,000 8% Preference shares of ` 100 each 
 

 

Reserves and Surplus 

Capital reserve (W.N.) 

General reserve 

Add: Profit and Loss Account Less: 

Preliminary expenses Less: 

profit on reissue (75x 40) 
 

 

Long-term borrowings 

Secured- Term Loans 

Loan  from  Public  Financial  Corporation 

(3,40,000 – 8,000) 

(Secured  by  hypothecation  of  Plant  and 

Machinery) 

Unsecured loan 
 

 

Trade Payables 

Other current liabilities 

Interest accrued but not due on loans (PFC) 

Dividend Payable 

Outstanding expenses 
 
 

Short-term provisions 

Provision for taxation 

 

 

(A) 

(B) 

Total (A + B) 
 
 
 
 

 

99,000 

(21,000) 

 (3,000) 

Total 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Total 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total 

 
 
 
 
 

6,00,000 
 

 
 
 

3,00,000 

9,00,000 
 

 

3,000 

88,000 
 

 
 
 

75,000 

1,66,000 
 

 
 
 

3,32,000 
 

 
 
 
 

  85,000 

4,17,000 

2,45,000 
 

 

8,000 

10,000 

  6,000 

24,000 
 

 

12,000 
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7 PPE   

 Factory Buildings 6,94,000 

 Less: Depreciation (74,000) 6,20,000 

 Plant & Machinery 5,35,000  

 Less: Depreciation (37,000) 4,98,000 

 Furniture & Fittings 1,76,000  

 Less: Depreciation (24,000)  1,52,000 

 Total  12,70,000 

8 Inventories   

 Raw Material  1,35,000 

 Finished goods     66,000 

  Total 2,01,000 

9 Trade receivables  2,38,000 

10 Cash and cash equivalents   

 Cash at bank  39,000 

 Cash in hand  16,000 

  Total 55,000 
 

Working Note: 
 

Calculation of Capital Reserve on reissue of forfeited equity shares: 

Balance in forfeiture Account  = ` 5,250 

Discount on reissue of shares = ` 2,250 
 

Amount to be transferred to capital reserve = ` 5,250 - ` 2,250 = ` 3,000 
 

Note: 
 

1. The final dividend will not be recognized as a liability at the balance sheet 

date (even if it is declared after reporting date but before approval of the 

financial statements) as per Accounting Standards. Hence, it has not been 

recognized in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025. 

Such dividends will be disclosed in notes only. 
 

2. There is a Contingent Liability for bills discounted but not yet matured 

amounting to ` 15,000
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Answer 3 
 

(a)                                                      Moon Ltd. 
 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
 

 ` ` 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net Profit before taxation 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Profit on sale of Furniture & Fixtures 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Increase in Trade receivables 

Increase in inventories 

Increase in Trade payables 

Cash generated from operations 

Income taxes paid (W.N.1) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Sale of Furniture & Fixtures 

Purchase of Furniture & Fixtures (W.N.2) 

 
 

45,000 
 

 

35,000 

(8,000) 

72,000 

(10,000) 

(50,000) 

15,000 

27,000 

(4,000) 

 
 

 

17,000 

(1,49,000) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23,000 

 

Net cash used in investing activities                                             (1,32,000) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Issue of shares for cash                                               2,00,000 

Net cash generated from financing activities                                2,00,000 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents                                      91,000

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

(31.3.2024) 

Cash  and  cash  equivalents  at  end  of  period 

(31.3.2025) 

1,85,000 
 
 

2,76,000
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Working Notes: 
 

  ` 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2 

Income taxes paid 

Income tax expense for the year 

Add: Income tax liability at the beginning of the year 
 

 

Less: Income tax liability at the end of the year 

Less: DTL 
 
 

Property, plant and equipment acquisitions 

Furniture & Fixtures 

W.D.V. at 31.3.2025 

Add back: 

Depreciation for the year 

Disposals (17,000 -8,000) 
 

 

Less: W.D.V. at 31.12.2024 

Acquisitions during 2024-2025 

 

 

15,000 

10,000 

25,000 

(15,000) 

(6,000) 

4,000 
 

 

` 

2,95,000 
 

 

35,000 

    9,000 

3,39,000 

(1,90,000) 

1,49,000 
 

(b)  As  per  para  36  of  AS  25  “Interim  Financial  Reporting”,  seasonal  or 

occasional revenue and cost within a financial year should not be deferred 

as of interim date until it is appropriate to defer at the end of the 

enterprise’s financial year. 
 

Comments on observations: 
 

(i)   Dividend income received during 3rd quarter should be recognised in 

the 3rd quarter only. 
 

(ii)   Sales promotion expenses cannot be deferred on the basis that fourth 

quarter has more sales. This expense should be recognized in 3rd 

quarter only. 
 

(iii)  Further, as per AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment, if there is change 

in the depreciation method, such a change should be accounted for as 

a change in accounting estimate in accordance with AS 5, Net Profit or 

Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting 

Policies, and applied prospectively. Therefore, no adjustment would be 

required due to change in the method of depreciation. 
 

(iv)  Extra ordinary gain of ` 3 lakhs should be wholly recognized in 3rd 

quarter only. 
 

(v)   Loss of ` 2 lakhs belong to previous quarters and not 3rd quarter, so it 

should not be deducted from the profit of 3rd quarter. 
 

(vi)  Gain on sale of investment is in the nature of occasional gain, so it 

cannot be deferred and hence the amount of ` 7.5 lakhs considered as 
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income of 1st quarter, will be reversed from the profit of the 3rd 

quarter. 
 

Accordingly, the adjusted profit before tax for the 3rd quarter will be as follows: 
 

Statement showing Adjusted Profit Before Tax for the third quarter 
 

 (`) 

Profit before tax (as reported) 

Add: Dividend income ` (8,00,000 - 2,00,000) 

Excess depreciation charged in the 3rd quarter, due to 

change in the method 

Extra ordinary gain ` (3,00,000-1,50,000) 

Cumulative loss due to change in the method of inventory 

valuation      should      be      applied      retrospectively 

` (5,00,000-3,00,000) 

18,00,000 

6,00,000 

- 
 

 

1,50,000 
 
 

 
  2,00,000 

27,50,000 
 

 

Less: Sales promotion expenses (70% of ` 15 lakhs) (10,50,000) 

Gain on sale of investment (occasional gain should not be 

deferred) 

 

 

 (7,50,000) 

Adjusted Profit before tax for the third quarter   9,50,000 
 

 

Answer 4 
 

Journal Entries in the Books of Pickles Ltd. 
 

  Debit (`) Credit (`) 

Realisation A/c 

To Land & Building A/c 

To Plant & Machinery A/c 

To Furniture & Fixtures A/c 

To Patent A/c 

To Inventories A/c 

To Trade Receivables A/c 

(Being assets transferred to Realisation A/c) 

Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

16,50,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1,00,000 

1,75,000 

65,000 

35,000 

 
 

3,50,000 

3,00,000 

1,00,000 

75,000 

5,25,000 

3,00,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,75,000 

8% Debentures A/c 

Trade Payables A/c 

Other Current Liabilities A/c 

Retirement Gratuity Fund A/c 

To Realisation A/c 

(Being  liabilities  transferred  to  Realisation 

A/c) 
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Cash A/c 

To Realisation A/c 

(Being part of furniture sold) 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 
 

 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Dr. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

55,000 
 
 
 

 

16,85,000 
 
 
 

 

3,15,000 

8,70,000 

5,00,000 
 
 
 

 

5,00,000 

1,35,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6,35,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6,00,000 

1,00,000 

1,10,000 

25,000 

 
 

55,000 
 
 
 

 

16,85,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16,85,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6,35,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1,35,000 

5,00,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8,35,000 

Foods Ltd. A/c 

To Realisation A/c 

(Being purchase consideration receivable) 

Cash A/c 

Equity Shares in Foods Ltd A/c 

Preference Shares in Foods Ltd A/c 

To Foods Ltd. A/c 

(Being consideration received) 

6% Preference Share Capital A/c 

Realization A/c 

To Preference Shareholders A/c 

(Being  amount  due  to  preference 

shareholders for capital and extra amount 

payable under the scheme of acquisition) 

Preference Shareholders A/c 

To Cash A/c 

To Pref. Shares in Foods Ltd A/c 

(Being     payment     made     to     preference 

shareholders) 

Equity Share Capital A/c 

General Reserve A/c 

Profit & Loss A/c 

Retirement Gratuity fund 

To Equity Shareholders A/c 

(Being various accounts representing capital, 

reserve, profit and loss account and others 

transferred to equity shareholder account) 
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Equity Shareholders A/c 

To Cash A/c 

To Equity Shares in Foods Ltd A/c 

(Being payment made to equity shareholders) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

11,65,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22,500 
 
 
 

 

22,500 
 
 
 

 

3,30,000 

 
 

2,95,000 

8,70,000 
 
 
 

 

22,500 
 
 
 

 

22,500 
 
 
 
 

3,30,000 

Foods Ltd A/c 

To Cash A/c 

(Being liquidation expenses paid) 

Cash A/c 

To Foods Ltd A/c 

(Being reimbursement by Foods Ltd.) 

Realisation A/c 

To Equity Shareholders A/c 

(Being Profit on realization is transferred to 

equity shareholders) 
 

Realisation Account 
 

(Journal Entries 
 

 Particulars Amount 

(`) 

 Particulars Amount 

(`) 

To 

To 

To 

To 

To 

To 

To 

To 

Land & Building 

Plant & Machinery 

Furniture & Fixtures 

Patent 

Inventories 

Trade Receivables 

Preference shareholder 

Equity Shareholder A/c 

(Profit on realization) 

3,50,000 

3,00,000 

1,00,000 

75,000 

5,25,000 

3,00,000 

1,35,000 
 
 

3, 30,000 

21,15,000 

By 

By 

By 

By 

By 

By 

Debentures 

Trade Payables 

Other Current Liabilities 

Ret. Gratuity Fund 

Cash (Sale of Furniture) 

Foods Ltd (PC) 

1,00,000 

1,75,000 

65,000 

35,000 

55,000 

16,85,000 

 

21,15, 000 
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Cash Account 
 

 Particulars Amount 

(`) 

 Particulars Amount 

(`) 

To 

To 

To 

To 

Balance b/d 
 

 

Realisation   A/c   (Furniture 

Sale) 

Foods           Ltd.           A/c 

(Reimbursement) 

Foods Ltd (Cash Part of PC) 

(1,35,000 + 1,80,000) 

60,000 
 

 

55,000 
 

 

22,500 
 

 

3,15,000 

By 

By 

By 

Foods       Ltd.       A/c 

(Expenses) 

Pref.      Shareholders 

A/c 

Equity   Shareholders 

A/c 

22,500 
 

 

1,35,000 
 

 

2,95,000 

  4,52,500   4,52,500 
 

Working Notes: 
 

1.   Purchase Consideration 
 

 ` ` Form 

(i)   Preference Shares: ` 27 per 

share 

Preference shares 

(ii)   Equity   shares:   `  30   per 

share 

6,000 equity shares in Food 

Ltd. @ ` 145 

1,35,000 
 

 

5,00,000 

1,80,000 
 
 

 
8,70,000 

 

 
 
 

6,35,000 
 
 
 
 

 

10,50,000 

16,85,000 

Cash 
 

 

Preference shares 

Cash 
 
 

 
Equity shares 
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Answer 5 
 

(a)  Consolidated s t a t e m e n t  o f  p r o f i t  a n d  l o s s  o f  B i r d s  L t d .  And 

i t s  subsidiary Rooster Ltd. for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 
 

Particulars Note 

No. 

` 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total revenue (I) 

Expenses: 

Cost of material purchased/consumed 

Changes (Increase) in inventories of finished goods 

Employee benefit expense 

Other expenses Total 

expenses (II) Profit 

before tax (II-III) 

1 

2 
 
 
 
 

3 

4 

5 

6 

38,80,000 

8,33,000 

47,13,000 
 

 

10,90,000 

(6,20,000) 

11,53,000 

6,55,500 

22,78,500 

24,34,500 
 

Notes to Accounts 
 

   ` ` 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 

Revenue from operations 

Sales and other operating revenues 

Birds Ltd. 

Rooster Ltd. 

Other Income 

Dividend income: 

Birds Ltd. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1,35,000 

 
 
 
 

28,40,000 

10,40,000 

 

 
 
 
 
 

38,80,000 
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Less:  Dividend  received  from   

Rooster Ltd. (2,50,000 × 12%) (30,000) 

Rooster Ltd. 28,000 1,33,000 

Other Non-operating Income 

Birds Ltd.                                         2,38,000 

Rooster Ltd.                                       57,000   2,95,000 

Rent received 

Birds Ltd.                                         5,40,000 

Less: Rent received by Birds Ltd. 

from Rooster Ltd. (11,250 x 12)    (1,35,000)   4,05,000   8,33,000 

3.    Cost     of     material     purchased/ 

consumed 

Birds Ltd.                                         9,15,000 

Rooster Ltd.                                    1,75,000                   10,90,000 

4. Changes  (Increase)  in  inventories 

of finished goods 

Birds Ltd. (7,85,000 - 3,35,000)                               4,50,000 

Rooster Ltd. (2,90,000 -1,20,000)                           1,70,000   6,20,000 

5.    Employee benefits and expenses 

Salaries: 

Birds Ltd.                                                           7,75,000 

Rooster Ltd.                                                      3,78,000 11,53,000 

6.    Other expenses 

General         &         Administrative 

expenses: 
 

Birds Ltd. 2,81,500  

Rooster Ltd. 1,98,000 

Less: Rent paid to Birds Ltd. (1,35,000) 3,44,500 

Selling and distribution Expenses:   

Birds Ltd. 2,21,000  

S- 49



 

Add: Share of capital profits [70,000 X 70%] 49,000 (3,99,000) 

Capital reserve  11,500 

 

 

 

Less: paid to Rooster Ltd                       (15,000) 

Rooster Ltd.                                       90,000 

Add: Received from Birds Ltd.                 15,000   3,11,000    6,55,500 
 

Note: 
 

An amount of ` 15,000 was added under Selling and Distribution Expenses 

of Rooster Ltd. due to a rectification entry, while ` 15,000 was deducted 

from Birds Ltd. under the same head to account for the set-off of inter- 

company transactions. 

(b)  Calculation of capital reserve/goodwill at the date of acquisition Case 

(i) it is assumed Dividend is paid out of post-acquisition profits Total 

dividend paid is ` 25,000 hence dividend received by Rubber will be 

credited to P & L. 
 

Rubber Ltd.’s share of dividend = ` 25,000 X 70% = ` 17,500 
 

Goodwill   on   consolidation   (at   the   date   of              `            ` 

acquisition): 

Cost of shares                                                                                   4,05,000 

Less: Face value of capital i.e. 70% of capital 5,00,000  3,50,000 

Add: Share of capital profits [70,000X 70%]                    49,000  (3,99,000) 

Goodwill                                                                                                 6,000 
 

Case (ii) it is assumed Dividend is received out of pre-acquisition profits. 
 

Since dividend received is for pre-acquisition period, it has been reduced 

from the cost of investment in the subsidiary company. 
 

Goodwill  on  consolidation  (at  the  date  of                `            ` 

acquisition): 

Cost of shares                                                                                  4,05,000 

Less: dividend received                                                                    (17,500) 

3,87,500

Less:  Face  value  of  capital  i.e.  70%  of  capital 

5,00,000 

3,50,000
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Answer 6 
 

(a) Accounting Standards are the written policy documents issued by 

Government relating to various aspects of measurement, treatment, 

presentation and disclosure of accounting transactions and events. 
 

Following are the objectives of Accounting Standards: 
 

a. Accounting Standards harmonize the diverse accounting policies and 

practices followed by different companies in India. 
 

b. Accounting   Standards   facilitates   the   preparation   of   financial 

statements and make them comparable. 
 

c.    Accounting Standards give a sense of faith and reliability to the users. 
 

The main advantage of setting accounting standards are as follows: 
 

a. Accounting Standards makes the financial statements of different 

companies comparable which helps investors in decision making. 
 

b.    Accounting Standards prevent any misleading accounting treatment. 
 

c. Accounting   Standards   prevent   manipulation   of   data   by   the 

management.
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OR 
 

(a)  Statement Showing Impairment Loss 
 

(` in lakhs) 

Carrying amount of the machine as on 1st April, 2019                         60 

Depreciation for 3 years i.e. 2019-2020 to 2021-2022

60 Lakh 
[ 

6 years 

 

x 3 years] 
(30)

 

Carrying amount as on 31.03.2022                                                         30 

Add:  Upward  Revaluation  (credited  to  Revaluation  Reserve            6 

account) 

Carrying amount of the machine as on 1st April, 2022 (revalued)          36 

Less: Depreciation for 2 years i.e. 2022-2023 & 2023-2024

36 Lakh 
[ 

3 years 

 

x 2 years] 
(24)

 

Carrying amount as on 31.03.2024  12 

Less: Recoverable amount  (9) 

Impairment loss   3 

Less: Balance in revaluation reserve as on 31.03.2024: 6  

Less: Enhanced depreciation met from revaluation reserve   

2022-2023 & 2023-2024 = [(12 – 10) x 2 years] (4)  

Impairment loss set off against revaluation reserve balance as 

per para 58 of AS 28 “Impairment of Assets” 

(2)

Impairment Loss to be debited to profit and loss account                    1 
 

(b) 
 

Amount that can be drawn from reserves for 9% dividend 

9% dividend on ` 95,00,000                                                     ` 8,55,000 

Profits available 

Current year profit                                                                    (3,75,000) 

Amount which can be utilised from reserves                           4,80,000
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Conditions as per Companies (Declaration of dividend out of Reserves) 

Rules, 2014: 
 

Condition I 
 

Since 9% is lower than the average rate of dividend (12.5%), 9% dividend 

can be declared. 
 

Thus, this condition is satisfied. 

Condition II 

Maximum amount that can be drawn from the accumulated profits and 

reserves should not exceed 10% of paid up capital plus free reserves i.e. 

` 11,35,000 [10% of (95,00,000+18,50,000)]. 
 

Thus, this condition too is satisfied. 
 

Condition III 
 

The balance of reserves after drawl ` 13,70,000 (`  18,50,000 - ` 4,80,000) 

should not fall below 15. 
 

% of its paid up capital i.e. ` 14,25,000 (15% of ` 95,00,000] 
 

Thus,  this  condition  is  not  satisfied,  the  company  cannot  withdraw 

` 4,80,000 from accumulated reserves. 
 

Conclusion: 
 

Since condition-III is not satisfied, the Day Ltd cannot declare dividend 

@ 9%. However, all three conditions to be satisfied, Day Ltd. can MAXIMUM 

utilize ` 4,25,000 and pay dividend to that extent. 
 

(c)                               Trading and Profit and Loss A/c 
 

for the year ended 31st March 2025 
 

 Head 

office 

` 

Branch 
 

 
` 

 Head 

office 

` 

Branch 
 

 
` 

To Opening stock 

To Purchases 
 

 

To Goods received 

from head office 

75,000 

9,25,000 
 

 

- 

- 

- 
 

 

3,60,000 

By Sales 

By Goods sent to 

branch 

By Closing stock 

(W.N. 1 & 2) 

10,25,000 

3,60,000 
 

 

1,34,375 

2,70,000 

_ 
 

 

1,20,000 
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To Gross profit c/d   5,19,375 30,000  

 15,19,375 3,90,000  15,19,375 3,90,000 

To Office expenses 9,000 3,000 By   Gross   profit 5,19,375 30,000 

   b/d   

To Staff salaries 13,700 2,500    

To   Branch   Stock 

Reserve (W.N.3) 

45,000 _    

To Net Profit 4,51,675 24,500    

 5,19,375 30,000  5,19,375 30,000 
 

Working Notes 
     

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(1) Calculation of closing stock of head office: ` 

 Opening Stock of head office 75,000 

 Goods purchased by head office 9,25,000 

  10,00,000 

 Less: Cost of goods sold [(10,25,000 + 3,60,000 x 100/160] (8,65,625) 

 
 

(2) 

 
 

Calculation of closing stock of branch: 

1,34,375 

` 

 Goods received from head office [At invoice value] 3,60,000 

 Less: Invoice value of goods sold [2,70,000 x 160/180] (2,40,000) 

  1,20,000 

(3) Calculation of unrealized profit in branch stock:  

Branch stock                                                  ` 1,20,000 

Profit included                                               60% of cost 

Hence, unrealized profit would be = ` 1,20,000 x 60/160     ` 45,000 
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